MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE

TAMPA FIRE & POLICE PENSION FUND

Livestream: https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/5428338815588856158 Webinar ID: 225-203-259

Audio Only: (866) 901-6455 Access Code: 426-695-099

May 31, 2023 9:30 a.m.

The Board of Trustees of the City Pension Fund for Firefighters and Police Officers in the City of Tampa met on Wednesday, May 31, 2023 at 9:30 a.m. for a regular meeting with the following members present:

Patrick Messmer, Chairman

Matthew Belmonte

Jamie Stock

John Cannon

Alex Thiel

John Haintz

Ocea Wynn

Dennis Rogero

Additional participants included Mr. Persio Abreu, Retired TFR; Mr. Joseph Griffin, Fund Actuary; Mr. Robert Klausner, General Counsel; Mr. Mark Lenker, Fund Accountant; Mr. Rufus Lewis, Retired TPD; Ms. L. Sheridan, Surviving Spouse; and active and retired plan members.

Public Comments: Pursuant to Florida Statutes, Section 286.0114(4), members of the public may comment on items requiring Board action, other than ministerial matters. Speakers are limited to two minutes each and not more than 20 minutes will be set aside for comments, without further Board approval. Speakers shall fill out a card identifying the speaker and the agenda item(s) being addressed or a card supporting or objecting to an item without speaking. See Board Policy 107 for rules of conduct. The statements made by speakers under Public Comments are solely the opinion of each speaker and do not necessarily reflect the views of the Board of Trustees, its staff, or its professionals.

There were no public comments.

1. Approved the minutes of the April 26, 2023 regular board meeting. <u>It was moved by Mr. Thiel, seconded by Mr. Haintz and by unanimous vote to approve the minutes of the April 26, 2023 regular Board meeting.</u>

Consent Agenda: Items on the consent agenda shall be acted upon in one motion. If an item requires additional discussion, that item shall be removed from the consent agenda for discussion. [Items 2-5] <u>It was moved by Mr.</u> Belmonte, seconded by Mr. Stock and by unanimous vote to approve consent agenda items 2-5.

- 2. Ratified pension benefits.
- 3. Investment Management Report from Bowen, Hanes & Co. Inc. Noted receipt of the following:
 - a. Investment management report for the month ended 04/30/2023. Market value of *investments* was \$2,434,814,313.71. Investment return has been 13.6% on the total portfolio so far this fiscal year.
 - b. Addendum distributed at the meeting.
- 4. Approved billing for services rendered by Klausner, Kaufman, Jensen & Levinson during April 2023:
 - a. General counsel: \$5,499.75 (after credit)
 - b. Artz: \$4,150.00
 - c. Whitter \$9,465.00 (after credit)
 - d. Sanzone \$6,190.00
- 5. Noted receipt of Disability Process Timeline of disabilities in process as of 5/22/2022.

F & P Pension Board Agenda May 31, 2023

[Mr. Rogero joined the meeting at 9:37 a.m.]

- 6. <u>Actuarial Valuation Presentation</u> by Joseph Griffin, Actuary Foster & Foster. Distributed and discussed at board meeting by actuary:
 - a. Annual actuarial valuation for the fiscal year ended 09/30/2022.
 - b. Highlights of annual actuarial valuation for the fiscal year ended 09/30/2022.
 - c. Established the employee contribution rate for fiscal year 10/1/2023 09/30/2024 as recommended by the actuary based upon actuarial and statutory requirements and the 09/30/2022 actuarial valuation just presented and approved the plan administrator to email all active members the contribution rate for fiscal year ending 09/30/2024.
 - d. Noted receipt of draft letter to eligible retirees and eligible surviving spouses regarding the payment or non-payment of the 13th check for fiscal year ending 09/30/2022.

Mr. Griffin provided an introduction, noting that the valuation develops funding requirements for the base plan and determines contribution requirements for fiscal year ending 2024. Membership data used in the valuation was reviewed, including the size of the membership, average earnings of active members, and average monthly pension benefits of retired members. Mr. Griffin reviewed the Fund's asset allocation noting that all member, city, and state contributions and returns from 1-5% are allocated to the base account, returns from 5-10% and above 11% are allocated to the COLA account, and returns from 10-11% are allocated to the 13th check account (if certain conditions are met). The history of the assumed rate of return was reviewed and it was noted that the recent stochastic study validated the current 8.5%. Funding status was reviewed, and it was noted that the Fund was 88% funded on an actuarial basis. Contribution requirements were discussed, along with the state premium tax monies and a synopsis of accruals over a member's assumed career. Potential make-up amounts to the base and PRAA accounts were also covered, in light of the Fund's negative investment return during fiscal year 2022. Mr. Griffin took questions from the Board.

It was moved by Mr. Belmonte, seconded by Mr. Haintz and by unanimous vote to accept the annual actuarial valuation results, as prepared by Foster & Foster.

It was moved by Mr. Belmonte, seconded by Mr. Haintz and by unanimous vote to adopt the employee contribution rate of 18.68% for fiscal year ending 09/30/2024.

Ms. Weber apprised the Board of her efforts to coordinate the contribution start date with the City to begin 10/01/2023, as opposed to the first paycheck in the new fiscal year that the City currently abides by. She stated that she has received pushback on this and if the change cannot be made, members will see the new contribution rate first applied with the 10/06/2023 paycheck. It was moved by Mr. Haintz, seconded by Mr. Thiel and by unanimous vote to authorize the plan administrator to email contribution rate information to all active members.

Mr. Griffin advised that a 13th check is not payable for fiscal year ending 09/30/2022 since investment returns did not exceed 10%. It was moved by Mr. Thiel, seconded by Mr. Stock and by unanimous vote to approve the communication to retirees regarding non-payment of 13th check.

Following a brief discussion concerning experience and stochastic studies and prior board practice, it was moved by Mr. Stock, seconded by Mr. Belmonte and by unanimous vote to request Foster & Foster to conduct an actuarial experience study.

[Recess from 10:21 a.m. – 10:26 a.m.]

F & P Pension Board Agenda May 31, 2023

Medical Disability

- 7. Approved the Final Order for disability applicant T. Smith, TPD. It was moved by Mr. Belmonte, seconded by Mr. Stock and by unanimous vote to approve the Final Order for disability applicant T. Smith, TPD. [Mr. Rogero was unavailable for the vote].
- 8. Rescheduled Formal Hearing for disability applicant T. Vidovic, formerly of TFR. Ms. Weber advised that the extensive witness list received for the hearing was the main reason for the need to reschedule. She recommended a non-Board meeting date sometime in the fall that all trustees could commit to attending. Mr. Klausner offered his opinion that it was best to wait until the witness list could hopefully be narrowed down before moving forward on a decision for the new date. *After discussion, it was agreed to table agenda item #8*.

New Business

9. Noted receipt of listing of upcoming conferences. Disclosure of planned attendance, if any. Mr. Thiel, Mr. Belmonte, Mr. Stock and Mr. Messmer declared for IFEBP in Boston. Mr. Haintz and Mr. Cannon declared for FPPTA in the fall. Mr. Belmonte also tentatively declared for the Public Funds Forum in September.

[Item #10 was taken out of order at the request for Mr. Abreu.]

[Mr. Klausner made a broad advisement to the Board and to the respective members who requested an appearance, informing them of policy and procedure].

- 11. Noted receipt of agenda appearance request from L. Sheridan, surviving spouse, dated 05/22/2023.
 - a. Original letter from L. Sheridan, dated 05/03/2023.
 - b. Copy of benefit award letter, dated 08/19/2021.
 - c. Copy of survivor benefits application, signed 09/01/2021.
 - d. Excerpt of pension contract.

Ms. Sheridan provided details and background of her request to have pension benefits reinstated following her remarriage. Mr. Klausner noted that language stating forfeiture due to remarriage exists on the 2021 benefit award letter to Ms. Sheridan, the survivor application that she completed, and also in Section 9 of the pension contract. No action taken by the Board, and as such, item #11 was received and filed.

- 12. Noted receipt of agenda appearance request from R. Lewis, retired TPD, dated 05/24/2023.
 - a. Original letter from R. Lewis, dated 04/25/2023.
 - b. Excerpt from 03/08/1983 minutes.
 - c. Final Order, dated 11/28/1983.
 - d. Second District Court of Appeals Order, dated 05/07/1986.

Mr. Lewis and his paralegal, Mr. A. Jones, provided details and background of the request to have Mr. Lewis' non-line-of-duty disability switched to line-of-duty. Mr. Klausner cited four separate approvals for non-line-of-duty and opined that the Board did not have authority to change the award, as statute of limitations may also be in play. No action taken by the Board, and as such, item #12 was received and filed.

- 10. Noted receipt of agenda appearance request from P. Abreu, retired TFR, dated 05/16/2023.
 - a. Policy 402 Procedures for Applying for Disability Retirement
 - Mr. Abreu provided details and background of his request for an extension to apply for disability retirement past his last day of service. Mr. Klausner cited the clauses in Policy 402 and advised no action be taken. No action taken by the Board, and as such, item #10 was received and filed.
- 13. Chair's call for any new business items from trustees to be placed on next agenda: None.

F & P Pension Board Agenda May 31, 2023

- 14. Chair's report: None.
- 15. Plan Administration: building security, wallpaper quotes, July and August board meetings Ms. Weber advised the Board of recent issues regarding pension staff being approached in the parking lot by panhandlers. She noted that the outside intercom system was replaced in order to screen individuals before entry into the building. She updated the Trustees on the additional wallpaper quotes for the building that were requested, noting that multiple companies declined the work and one estimate was significantly higher than the original one obtained. After brief discussion, the Board agreed to table the potential wallpaper replacement and window trim painting. Ms. Weber concluded her remarks by recommending that because the July board meeting could not be rescheduled, it should be cancelled and the August Board meeting be reinstated. It was moved by Mr. Stock, seconded by Mr. Haintz and by unanimous vote to cancel the July 2023 Board meeting and reinstate the previously cancelled August 2023 Board meeting.
- 16. Attorney's Report: Mr. Klausner noted that House Bill 3 had become law. He advised that the structure of the Fund's portfolio should not be affected and that specific rules of the new bill were set to be drafted.

<u>Litigation Report</u> – Update by attorney, if any. [Items 16 – 20]

17. Artz Lawsuit

2nd District Court of Appeals Case No. 2D15-1342
Hillsborough County Circuit Court Case No.07-012048

Mr. Klausner offered that a dollar amount of fees had been agreed upon and that fees could be collected jointly and severally.

18. Appel Petition for Writ of Certiorari 2nd District Court of Appeals Case No. 2D18-4443 Hillsborough County Circuit Court Case No. 17-CA-10758

No update.

19. Charles Petition for Writ of Certiorari Hillsborough County Circuit Court Case No. 22-CA-010538 No update.

20. Whitter Petition for Writ of Certiorari Hillsborough County Circuit Court Case No. 22-CA-10495 No update.

21. Sanzone Small Claims Lawsuit Hillsborough County Circuit Court Case No. 23-CC-019963 Mr. Klausner advised that the lawsuit had been dismissed in its present form, but the judge allowed Mr. Sanzone the opportunity to amend the suit with proof of breach of contract. Mr. Sanzone offered to end the suit if the Board agrees to release him of all attorney's fees. Mr. Klausner recommended an amended offer of 50% of attorney's fees, to be paid immediately, or the surrender of the next 13th check awarded to Mr. Sanzone. The Board held discussion, after which it was moved by Mr. Belmonte, seconded by Mr. Thiel and by unanimous vote to propose the choice to P. Sanzone to pay 50% of all attorney's fees immediately or the forfeit of his next awarded 13th check.

Securities Litigation Report – Update by attorney, if any. [Item 22]

22. Generac United States District Court Case No. 2:22-cv-01436-BHL United States District Court Case No. 2:23-cv-00081-BHL

b. Litigation Report, Q1 2023.

Mr. Klausner announced that the order was granted for the Fund to act as lead plaintiff in the case. He stated that a scheduling order would now follow. Brief discussions on payment were held, with Mr.

Page 5

F & P Pension Board Agenda May 31, 2023

Chairman

Klausner noting that his fees would be taken through the award, thus reducing what Robbins Gellar would receive on their end.

Motion to adjourn was made by Ms. Wynn at 11:22.

DocuSigned by:

Oua Wyuu

27A4C600467C4C2...

Ocea Wynn

Secretary

Adam Hollen
Adam Hollen
Recording Secretary

DocuSigned by:

Notice

No verbatim record by a certified court reporter will be made of this Board meeting, except as noticed for any executive sessions. Notice is hereby given as provided in Section 286.0105, Fla. Stat., that any person who decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency, or commission with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, will need a record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons needing a special accommodation to participate in any noticed meeting should contact the F&P Pension office at (813) 274-8550 or (888) 335-8550 or the Florida Relay Service at (800) 955-8770 (voice) or (800) 955-8771 (TTY). You may also dial 711 from any landline or mobile phone. Additional options for contacting the Florida Relay Service may be found on their website: www.ftri.org Please make your request at least five (5) working days before the scheduled meeting date.

2023 Board meeting schedule – meetings begin at 9:30 a.m.

June 21, 2023 July 26, 2021 – CANCELLED August 23, 2023 September 27, 2023 October 25, 2023 November <u>15</u>, 2023 – early due to holidays December <u>13</u>, 2023 – early due to holidays